
 ARIZONA MUNICIPAL CLERKS’ ASSOCIATION 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING AGENDA  

 
Wednesday, October 25, 2023 

10:00 a.m. 
Teleconference at (800) 582-3014 

Participant Code: 63006808# 

Microsoft Teams meeting  

Click here to join the meeting  

Meeting ID: 297 021 537 72  
Passcode: CyjPzT  
Download Teams | Join on the web 
Learn More | Meeting options  

Committee Members:  Jennifer Pena, President; Carla Reece, Vice President; Sarah Siep, 
Treasurer; Annie Meredith, Secretary; Terri Roth, Small Community Director 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 

2. MINUTES 
A.  Discussion and possible action to approve the September 27, 2023, Executive Board 
Retreat Meeting minutes. 
 

3. BUSINESS 
 

A. IIMC Update – Lisa Garcia 
 

B. Discussion and possible action to budget AMCA Sponsorships 
 

C. Discussion and possible action to create budget for educational presenters 
 

D. Discussion and update regarding education management options for  Institute 
Director  
 

E. 09-27-2023 Retreat in Review 
i. Committee Application Recruitment Process – review and updates 

ii. AMCA Annual Conference & Elections Training- League will use Survey 
Monkey for the Survey, attendance record and assessment assignment, no 
late or Incomplete assessments accepted. 

iii. IIMC free educational session per quarter to AMCA/IIMC members- visit: 
(2022) www.iimc.com/ 

iv. Quorums for Committees – AMCA does not fall under Open Meeting Laws 
No quorum necessary 

v. Committees sharing working documents – Emergency back-up plan 
- SharePoint 
- Google Docs  



- OneDrive 
- Subsite for past relevant documents 
- AMCA Committees remember to add meetings to AMCA calendar 
 

vi. 2023 Education Survey- Not discussed, but summary of survey shows: 
Educational Goals 
- Earn CMC /  MMC / CEO 
- Continuing education/degree oriented (CPM-Leadership-Records Mngt 
- Continuing education related to job responsibilities and continued election 

training and updates/changes to election laws/processes 
- Be more knowledgeable in the roles/duties/responsibilities of a city clerk 

(mentoring) 
- Committee Responsibilities and Assignments- related to Annual Report data 

compilation 
Assistance from AMCA (Education Survey Con’t) 
- More Virtual Trainings & training library (what it takes to get educational 

sessions approved- training assessment-evaluations)- IIMC- other states 
educational opportunities 

- New England has 65 on-demand Courses: Accountability in the Workplace, 
Assertiveness and self-confidence, budget and financial info, coaching and 
mentoring, etc. 

- Facilitate meeting field experts to build a network 
- More leadership skills training w/ scenarios/ critical conversations 
- Info on serving the AMCA Committees Roles of members Chair and Co-Chair  
- Conducting Performance evaluations 
- Better organization of sessions in the Institute and Academy: 

- Blocked time for similar themed subject matter to allow attendance at 
only the theme you need assistance on, Not an all or nothing (Institute 
is a  3-year plan)  

(IIMC – online professional development courses 
https://forward.captus.com/iimc/sitepages/courses.aspx) 

- Round Table Discussion – Move elections training to a 2-day event, move 
testing to PROXY 

- Clerks mentor their deputies on where to start when preparing for an 
Election, Recall, Initiative, Referendum- keep each training material specific 
to the election type, don’t x-reference 

- Records Management, Succession planning,  
- Specialized training for those that “manage” their council, how to manage- 

when to speak up/when not to 
- Increase training opportunities – Investing in oneself through IIMC:  Visit 

IIMC education and NEDCC (northeast Document Conservation Center) 

vii. Budget Items (AMCA Budget) 
Line item for Sponsorship: 

- Women leading government Conference 10/19-20 (mesa Conf. 
Center) 

- IIMC- Annual conference – 2024 Calgary Canada 
- AMCA Education Budget - Speakers' expenses  



 
 
 

4. COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS AND GOALS 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding providing direction to Committees. Chairs 
to present goals, ideas or projects they would like to focus on. 
 

A. CAMPAIGN FINANCE COMMITTEE (Sharon Antes, Chair; Lisa Anderson, Co-Chair; Terri 
Roth, Board Liaison) 

B. COMMUNICATION COMMITTEE (Stacy Fobar, Chair; Marcella Carrillo, Co-Chair; Sarah 
Siep, Board Liaison) (Sarah 10/20-No updates) 

C. EDUCATION COMMITTEE (Rommel Cordova, Chair; Janet Pierson, Co-Chair; Carla Reece, 
Board Liaison) 

D. ELECTION COMMITTEE (Linda Mendenhall, Chair; Fatima Fernandez, Co-Chair; Carla 
Reece, Board Liaison) 

E. HANDBOOK AND CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE (Summer Stewart, Chair; Rommel 
Cordova, Co-Chair; Sarah Siep, Board Liaison) (Sarah 10/20-No updates) 

F. LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE (Denise Archibald, Chair; Summer Stewart, Co-Chair; Carla 
Reece, Board Liaison) 

G. MEMBERSHIP/MENTORING/REGIONAL LEADERS COMMITTEE (Kara DeArrastia, Chair; 
Cindy Pemberton, Co-Chair; Annie Meredith, Board Liaison) 

H.  RECORDS MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (Ben Lane, Chair; Victoria Roedig, Co-Chair; Terri 
Roth, Board Liaison) 

I.  SCHOLARSHIP/MARKETING COMMITTEE (Crystal Hadfield, Chair; Kristen Benavidez, Co-
Chair; Terri Roth, Board Liaison) 

 
4. GOOD OF THE ORDER/COMMENTS FROM EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 
 

- 2024 Ballot Recount Issue  
 
5. REMINDERS/DEADLINES 
 

- Fall Best Practices November 28th & 29th AM Sessions – Records and Essential 
Records  

- Athenian Dialog – December 5th - Virtual 
 

6. NEXT REGULAR EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING DATE: Discussion on possible date change 
for the November meeting. 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 Jennifer Pena  

 Jennifer Pena, AMCA President (2023-24) 



 

 

 

 
ARIZONA MUNICIPAL CLERKS’ ASSOCIATION 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
September 27, 2023 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Meeting was called to order by President Jennifer Pena at 9:33 a.m. 

 

Board Members Present: Jennifer Pena, President; Carla Reece, Vice President; Sarah Siep, 

Treasurer; Annie Meredith, Secretary; Terri Roth, Board Director-Small Community 

Board Member Absent: none 

Attending Association Members: Marcella Carrillo, Communication Committee; Rommel 

Cordova, Education Committee; Linda Mendenhall & Fatima Fernandez, Election Committee; 

Denise Archibald, Legislative Committee; Kara DeArrastia, Membership/Mentoring/Regional 

Leaders Committee; Ben Lane & Victoria Roedig, Records Committee; Crystal Hadfield, 

Scholarship/Marketing Committee; Sandy Morari, League of Arizona Cities and Towns 

 

2. Minutes 

A. Discussion and possible action to approve the August 24, 2023 Executive Board 

Meeting Minutes.  

Vice President Carla Reece made a MOTION to APPROVE the August 24, 2023 Executive 

Board Meeting Minutes. Board Member Terri Roth SECONDED and it unanimously 

carried. 

 

3. New Business 

A. General AMCA Information 

President Jennifer Pena shared that there is general information that the League keeps 

track of, including the board email and listserv. She shared that she wasn’t always using 

the AMCA and IIMC websites, but the more you get involved and use it, that it is a 

valuable tool. She recommended that everyone share those resources with their teams. 

She said that the newsletter that the Communications committee sends out is amazing 

and the information is valuable. She shared that you can sign up on the IIMC website for 

upcoming training and Athenian dialogue announcements.  

 

Vice President Carla Reece agreed with President Pena and said that it was a good 

reminder. She said that IIMC is constantly their content, so it is a good refresher. 

 



 

 

Treasurer Sarah Siep said that their website is much more user friendly than it used to 

be. 

 

President Pena reminded everyone that when sending questions out on listserv, that 

when you collect the answers to please share them to be posted on the AMCA website. 

She gave an example of a fees question that went out and that it is great information for 

the website. 

 

Communications Committee Co-Chair Marcella Carrillo shared that it is one of their 

committee tasks to submit the listserv information to the League. She said that the 

committee will reach out to the author and have the results from listserv questions sent 

to them for posting. She shared that they submitted 9 listserv items to the League in 

August and September. 

 

B. Committee Application Recruitment Process: 

Discussion regarding the annual submittal of Committee applications and member 

limitations on various Committees. 

 

President Jennifer Pena shared that this year’s committee application process was 

interesting. She reviewed the process on completing and submitting the application. She 

said that the goal was to have the ability for members to serve on other committees. 

She shared that the committee chair generally serves for 2-4 years, but the goal is to get 

people to serve on committees. She said that some people thought they did not have to 

fill out an application to continue serving on a committee. She asked the group what 

they think of the current form that was re-done in 2017 and if they should consider 

changing it. 

 

Secretary Annie Meredith shared that this was the first year her Deputy Clerk signed up 

for a committee, and that when she listed the ones she was interested in serving on, in 

her preferred order that she didn’t realize she would be getting assigned to all of them. 

She shared that going from none to a few was a lot for her. She asked if there is a way 

they can indicate whether or not you are willing to serve on more than one committee, 

on the application. She recommended having people list their top three. She shared that 

with her Deputy, she suggested she try them and if it is too much then she can pull back. 

 

President Pena said that the description on the application says “I would like to serve on 

the following committees in this order.” 

 

Vice President Carla Reece said that they can provide some clarification in the 

application. 

 

Treasurer Sarah Siep agreed. 



 

 

 

Education Chair Rommel Cordova agreed. 

 

Treasurer Siep said that she talked with Membership/Mentoring/Regional Leaders 

Committee Chair Kara DeArrastia and there is confusion around listing the 

Mentor/Membership committee, and that you must be a Region Leader in order to 

serve on that committee. She gave an example of confusion in the Regions. 

 

Vice President Reece suggested pulling that one out as a special committee. 

 

President Pena said that they can define it a bit more in the description. She shared that 

there are a lot of members on some of the committees. She said that the Records 

committee just finished up a major project with the records handbook. She shared that 

this year there were so many people that wanted to serve on the Records committee. 

 

Records Committee Chair Ben Lane shared that there are so many people on that 

committee that they are having a difficult time trying to coordinate scheduling a 

meeting. 

 

President Pena said that it is a popular one and asked the group if they want to consider 

limiting the number of members on certain committees. 

 

Board Member Terri Roth said that she was going to ask if there is a way to put a limit 

on it. 

 

President Pena said that the Scholarship committee is like that also. She gave an 

example of the Scholarship committee last year and that they only had 4 scholarships to 

award. She asked what the groups thoughts were on limiting members to certain 

committees. 

 

Vice President Reece suggested asking the committee chairs what is manageable or 

needed. She said that they don’t want to set it too high or too low. 

 

Board Member Roth said that she is in support of that. 

 

President Pena reviewed the areas of confusion when signing up to serve on 

committees. 

 

Board Member Roth suggested having people indicate on the application, how many 

they want to serve on. 

 



 

 

Records Committee Chair Ben Lane said that he is happy to have people serving on the 

committee. He said that people are welcome to just listen in as well. He said that the 

hard thing with a large group is finding a time to meet, and having a quorum to get 

things approved. He suggested letting people know that they can listen in and ask 

questions without being a member of the committee. 

 

League Representative Sandy Morari asked how that will work with IIMC and the points 

they give for serving on a committee. She asked if it would be limiting people, if they 

reduce the number of people allowed to serve on each committee. 

 

President Pena asked how many members they currently have. She said that she is also 

going to look into the quorum requirements for committees, since they are not a 

government agency. 

 

Vice President Reece said she thinks there was something stated in the bylaws about 

that. She said that they can evaluate that. 

 

President Pena said that she will look and see if they need a quorum. 

 

League Representative Sandy Morari shared that there are currently 234 people through 

FY23. 

 

President Pena said that they can add that to the application as well, that if they just 

want to listen in, to contact the Chair. 

 

Education Committee Chair Rommel Cordova suggested that a Committee overview be 

a discussion topic at the Spring Best practices or in a clerk’s conversations to help 

people understand. 

 

C. Attendance/Assessment in Survey Monkey 

Discussion regarding sign-in process at Annual Conference  

 

President Jennifer Pena shared that the League has to manually enter attendance from 

everyone when they attend the summer conference. She said that it is a time-

consuming process.  

 

League Representative Sandy Morari said that since it is manual data entry, that it 

leaves more room for mistakes and that it can be time consuming to go back and forth. 

She said that they would like to utilize survey monkey for attendance and the 

conference survey. She shared that you could access it at the conference or put it on the 

back of the badges in a QR code. 

 



 

 

President Jennifer Pena shared that she understands, and gave an example of 

registering late for the Athenian Dialogue and not getting the assessment. 

 

League Representative Sandy Morari said that with security, that sometimes they have 

issues getting things through. 

 

President Pena summarized the way the survey monkey link would work. 

 

 League Representative Sandy Morari said that she would just download the information 

in an excel spreadsheet and the information to the committee chair to review and 

approve for points. 

 

Legislative Committee Chair Denise Archibald said that she thinks it is a great idea. She 

shared that Microsoft forms also has a similar functionality. 

 

Vice President Carla Reece made a MOTION to APPROVE the use of Survey Monkey for 

tracking attendance and survey completion. Treasurer Sarah Siep SECONDED and it 

unanimously carried. 

 

D. 2023 Education Survey 

President Jennifer Pena shared that there are a few things from the agenda that will be 

moved to the next meeting since IIMC Representative Lisa Garcia is out of town. She 

said that they will go over sponsorships as a budget line item, as well as the education 

survey that was sent out. She suggested everyone review the survey and they will 

discuss the educational opportunities, as well as the Institute and Academy. 

 

Education Committee Chair Rommel Cordova shared that the survey has been helpful 

and that the committee is using it as a guide to build the best practice trainings. He said 

that they will share it with ASU as well for topics at the Institute and Academy. 

  

E. IIMC to offer 1 educational session a quarter for free to AMCA/IIMC members  

President Pena said that there is a free educational opportunity in IIMC that Lisa Garcia 

helped set up. She said that it would be a great opportunity to get some education 

points at no charge. 

 

F. Committee Responsibilities and Assignments 

Review and discussion regarding committee responsibilities related to the compilation 

of the annual report. 

 

G. Committee Assignments and Goals 



 

 

Discussion and possible action regarding possible direction to Committees. Will ask 

committee chairs to bring back ideas of projects they would also like to work on. 

1.  CAMPAIGN FINANCE COMMITTEE: Board Liaison Terri Roth shared that they 

met on the 20th. She said that there was discussion on removal of political signs 

in city right of ways. She shared that the City of Phoenix has something that 

addresses it in their charter. She said that Hope Olguin is leaving the County 

Elections office and moving to the Secretary of State’s office. 

 

2.  COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE: Chair Marcella Carrillo shared that they have 

met twice so far this year and are working on their Fall newsletter. She said that 

they plan to highlight a different municipality in every newsletter. She shared 

that they will also be continuing with the Clerk in the Spotlight section of the 

newsletter. She said that they do reach out to the listserv authors and asked for 

everyone’s assistance in compiling the information into the template. She 

shared that their next meeting will be on October 11th. She said that she will 

also include the AMCA general information that was included in the board 

meeting packet. 

 

President Jennifer Pena shared that years ago there was a survey done about 

what are your hidden talents and/or what you specialize in. 

 

Chair Carrillo said that she will see if she can find that information. 

 

3.  EDUCATION COMMITTEE: Chair Rommel Cordova shared that they are hoping 

to have a virtual Fall Best Practices and Athenian Dialogue in November or 

December. He said that they are working on cleaning up their speaker database. 

He shared they are also working with Linda Hess regarding the Institute and 

Academy, and having more committee involvement in those. He said that they 

plan to do another education survey next year. 

 

President Jennifer Pena said that they do have a contract with ASU for this year, 

but it is looking like they don’t have the staff. She said that she is working with 

IIMC to find some solutions. She shared that we are not the only ones losing our 

Institute director. 

 

4.  ELECTION COMMITTEE: Chair Linda Mendenhall shared that they have not yet 

had their first meeting, but should be having one in the fall. She said that the 

committee will be looking at the annual elections training and doing a clerk’s 

panel again. She said that they will also be working on succession planning. She 

shared that Fatima Fernandez is her co-chair and that she is preparing her to be 

the chairperson. She said that she likes what Sandy Morari brought up about 

attendance, because at the annual elections training people don’t always check 



 

 

the right boxes. She said that they are considering having Campaign Finance on 

its own day. 

 

President Jennifer Pena said that the committees are just starting to meet, and 

asked the Committee Chairs to bring forth things to the board that they want to 

implement. She said that they saw some interesting lawsuits this year with 

campaign finance, and to talk about those real-life experiences is good. 

 

Chair Mendenhall said that they also need to find clerk’s that are willing to 

speak at the conference. She said that people want to hear their stories and 

real-life experience. 

 

5.  HANDBOOK AND CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE: President Jennifer Pena said 

that last year there were a lot of changes with the changes to the board.  

 

Co-Chair Rommel Cordova shared that the board has formally adopted those 

changes. He said that the committee wants the board to review the current 

roles and tasks so they can be adjusted. 

 

Vice President Carla Reece offered to take that on and give recommendations to 

the board. 

 

President Pena shared that when compiling the annual report, that she noticed 

that certain committees have responsibilities that don’t fit. 

 

League Representative Sandy Morari said that she found a fix and gave it to 

President Pena, regarding mentorship committee responsibilities. She said that 

they already maintain that data, so it can be removed. 

 

6.  LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE: Chair Denise Archibald shared that they will have 

their first meeting in October. She said that they have set up a file in share 

point/one drive for committee information. She said that they send out a 

weekly email to the membership during the session. She said that they will start 

meeting and see how the new legislative session goes. 

 

President Jennifer Pena asked if anyone had trouble accessing the one drive. 

 

Chair Archibald said that she is trying to switch it over to share point. She asked 

if there was a way to get a sub-site for each committee on the AMCA website. 

She said that it would be helpful for succession planning to keep all of the 

information there. She said that there are templates from the past, but it would 

be nice to have a site that everyone could access. 



 

 

 

President Pena said that the committees are listed with agendas and minutes, 

but maybe another page that they could list video on. 

 

League Representative Sandy Morari said that there are templates on the 

website and that they could add to it. 

 

Chair Archibald said she was thinking something more like a sit that is 

committee specific. 

 

Secretary Annie Meredith suggested a folder for each committee to keep all of 

their templates and meeting documents in. 

 

President Pena said that there is a folder with general agenda and minutes 

templates. She said that they keep the most current templates there so that 

everyone is using the same format. 

 

League Representative Sandy Morari said that they have agenda packets, 

minutes, and forms for the Executive Board and committees. She said that they 

can add to that. 

 

President Pena asked all committee chairs to take a look and see what is there 

and what is needed. She asked that they send their suggestions to the board. 

 

Education Committee Chair Rommel Cordova asked how working files for 

committee chairs are kept, historically from previous people. He said that it 

would be helpful to have sub-folders for committees. 

 

Vice President Carla Reece said that sometimes working files are helpful. 

 

League Representative Sandy Morari said that the forms are all in the members 

only section. She shared that the agendas and minutes are public. 

 

Education Chair Rommel Cordova said that he is thinking more of working 

documents within the committee, and correspondence they have from IIMC. 

 

President Pena said that they used to transition a box, but now they can share 

stuff electronically. She asked at what point it becomes irrelevant.  

 

Education Chair Rommel Cordova said that the current and historical 

information isn’t centrally located. He gave an example of when someone 

leaves and the information is needed to be passed on. 



 

 

League Representative Sandy Morari said that they don’t want to add too much 

stuff, but that the League can save whatever is requested. 

 

President Pena shared that she found a Municipal Clerk handbook from 1989 

and asked if Sandy Morari could find the file in the Leagues historical records. 

She said that she has been talking for years about going back to an Arizona 

Clerk’s handbook that each municipality can update for their specific 

department. She asked if the question is what do we keep versus what the 

League keeps. She recommended talking about what that records keeping looks 

like. 

 

Communications Committee Co-Chair Marcella Carrillo shared that they also 

have their own one drive for the communications committee through Avondale. 

She said that another option is a Google account for each chair person and the 

email and password would be shared with the chair and co-chair. She said that 

she created one and they are trying it out. She said that for succession planning, 

there are working documents that they don’t want others to see or to have 

them posted on the website. She shared that some of them are committee task 

specific. She said that she will bring it back to the communications committee. 

 

President Pena said that is a good idea and that she loves to hear new ideas. She 

said that they will bring this item back for discussion. 

  

7.  MEMBERSHIP/MENTORING/REGOINAL LEADERS COMMITTEE: Vice President 

Carla Reece shared an update from Chair Kara DeArrastia. She said that they 

have met and that their meeting calendar is on the AMCA website. She said that 

they are focusing on the mentoring aspects of the committee and shared some 

questions they will be asking the committee members. 

 

President Jennifer Pena shared that Chair DeArrastia has done a wonderful job 

on reconstruction of that committee. She said that IIMC also has a mentorship 

program. 

 

8.  RECORDS MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: Chair Ben Lane shared that they use a 

shared environment for the Records committee as well. He said that they 

started using Microsoft Teams last year to edit the records management 

manual. He said that he agrees on the importance of being able to share 

documents. He said that they are planning to have their first meeting in October 

and that he will send out that date by the end of the week. He said that he has a 

new co-chair this year, Victoria Roedig. He said that he is excited about having a 

new co-chair. He shared that this year the committee is working on completing 

an update to the AMCA records retention schedule. He said that they are 



 

 

working on developing a best practices document for essential records. He 

shared that these are the records that your jurisdiction needs in the event of a 

disaster. He said that each municipality is supposed to provide an update every 

5 years. He shared that email retention is all over the place for cities and towns, 

so they are working on developing best practices for that as well. He said that 

he is also working on succession planning this year for the Records committee. 

 

President Jennifer Pena said that she loves the manual Chair Lane is creating. 

 

Vice President Carla Reece said that Chair Lane took over the committee in 2017 

and has done great work with the committee. 

 

Chair Lane said that he enjoys chairing this committee. 

 

9.  SCHOLARSHIP/MARKETING COMMITTEE: Chair Crystal Hadfield shared that 

they had their first meeting yesterday and went over an update on the most 

recent fundraising. She said that they raised over $4,500 for scholarships. She 

shared that they are looking at their goals for this year, to include promoting the 

scholarship application and fundraising in the middle of the year. She said that 

they are considering a service-oriented fundraiser and asked the board for 

feedback on that. She said that they have also talked about changing the 

application to include a requirement that the recipient send a thank you. 

 

President Jennifer Pena asked what mid-year is. 

 

Chair Hadfield said December. 

 

President Pena said that the scholarship application requires that if the 

individual receiving a scholarship has not served on a committee, that they are 

required to after receiving the award. She asked if anyone is tracking that. 

 

Chair Hadfield said that she can work with the board on that. 

 

Board Member Terri Roth volunteered to work with her on that. She asked how 

far back they want to track. 

 

President Pena suggested 3 years and the board agreed with that timeframe. 

She asked Chair Hadfield if they were planning to have a scholarship article in 

the Fall newsletter. 

 

Chair Hadfield said that she sent that to Communications Chair Stacy Fobar 

yesterday. 



 

 

Chair Fobar said that she is going to put it in as a separate thing and not a 

committee update. 

 

President Pena said that Co-Chair Carrillo is looking for people with hidden 

talents, and that might help with her fundraising idea. 

  

4. Good of the order/comments from executive board members 

President Jennifer Pena asked if there were any comments from members. 

 

Records Committee Chair Ben Lane said that having Campaign Finance training on its own day 

would be helpful. He shared that he prefers just the training part and not the breakout groups. 

He said that since it is such a complex issue, he would prefer just the nuts and bolts.  

 

Vice President Carla Reece suggested doing a separate workshop for those that want an 

interactive practicum. 

 

Elections Chair Linda Mendenhall said that is a great idea. She shared that people also want a 

Zoom option for Elections training. 

 

President Pena said that she will work with Chair Mendenhall on doing a Zoom option in 

Fountain Hills for Elections training. She said that she agrees that they need to slow it down so 

the participants have a chance to digest it. 

 

Board Member Terri Roth said that they do put a lot of information into one session. 

 

Chair Mendenhall said that it used to be only 2 hours and that it is a hot topic that takes time. 

She said that it would be a great best practices topic. 

 

Scholarship Chair Crystal Hadfield thanked the League for all for all of the help that Matt Lore 

and Sandy Morari give. 

 

President Jennifer Pena also thanked the League for all of their support. 

 

5. Reminders/deadlines 

President Jennifer Pena shared that the deadline for submitting an article for the newsletter is 

October 2nd.  She also reminded everyone that the Elections certificates are on the AMCA 

website. 

 

6. Next regular executive board meeting date: October 25, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 

7. Adjournment 

President Jennifer Pena adjourned the meeting at 11:03 A.M. 

 



 

 

Annie Meredith, Board Secretary  

Minute Taker 



Budget Narrative

Income
Conferences & Trainings

Annual/Elections Conference 22,000

Fall Training 2,600

Spring Training 2,600

Athenian Dialogues 4,500
Institute & Academy (June) 25,000

Total Conferences & Trainings 56,700

Gifts, Donations & Misc Fundraising 500 GIFTS, DONATIONS & MISCELLANEOUS FUNDRAISING – This item includes 
funds received as a voluntary contribution and raffle income.

Grants 0 GRANTS – This item is reserved for the possible collection of funds received through 
grants programs for educational trainings.

Interest Income 40 INTEREST INCOME – Excess revenue is held in a High Yield Savings account and 
accrues interest.

Membership Dues 25,000

MEMBERSHIP DUES – Dues are collected from the membership by FY.  There are four 
membership categories which include full member, associate member, student member 
and retired member. [Board approved a $5 increase for FY23 (4/15/21).  Approved a $5 
increase for FY25 (4/19/23). Odd year increases.]

Scholarship Fundraising 2,000 SCHOLARSHIP FUNDRAISING – This item includes funds received from the gift 
basket fundraiser.

Sponsorships 8,000 SPONSORSHIPS – This is revenue collected through the League’s coordination of an 
AMCA corporate sponsorship program.  

Total Income 92,240

Expense

Awards 2,000 AWARDS – Each year awards (certificates & plaques) are given at the annual meeting 
for service to the AMCA.  This item also includes retirement gifts.

Board Expenses 1,500 BOARD EXPENSES – This category includes conference call charges and all other 
charges necessary to support the day-to-day activities and meetings of the Board.  

Conferences & Trainings
Annual/Elections Conference 22,000
Fall Training 1,800
Spring Training 1,800
Athenian Dialogues 3,000
Institute & Academy 20,000

Total Conferences & Trainings 48,600
IIMC & Regional Conferences

IIMC Director & Region Rep 5,000
Registration Fees 1,720
Accommodations / Lodging 1,200
Transportation 1,350
Meals 235

Total IIMC & Regional Conferences 9,505
Scholarships 

Institute (3 @ $350) 1,125
Academy (3 @ $275) 900
IIMC (2 @ $600) 1,200
Misc Scholarships (3 @ $100) 300

Total Scholarships 3,525

Support Services

Administrative 10,000

Financial Services 7,093

Supplies 5,000

Web Hosting / Listserv 960

Total Support Services 23,053

Total Expense 88,183

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 4,057

SUPPORT SERVICES – 
• Administrative – League support services 
• Financial Services – Contract accounting service [Accounting-$3,050; Audit Review-
$4,043]
• Supplies – General office supplies, copies, postage, shipping, credit card processing 
fees, online registration fees and other miscellaneous including charitable contributions
• Web Hosting  - Website maintenance and domain [Listserv-$300; Website hosting fee-
$660]

AMCA FY 2023-2024 BUDGET 
(Adopted at Apr 19, 2023 Board Meeting)

CONFERENCES & TRAININGS – This item includes revenues from the Annual 
Conference/Elections Training, Spring and Fall Trainings, Athenian Dialogues, Institute 
& Academy and any other possible training events.  This revenue is intended to cover all 
event expenses, plus provide approximately $3,000-$5,000 in net revenue to the AMCA 
to support other programs throughout the year.  [Board approved a $5 annual fee 
increase on all registration fees, except Athenian Dialogues (adopted 4/24/19).]

CONFERENCES & TRAININGS – This item includes all expenses incurred at the 
Annual Conference/Elections Training, Spring and Fall Trainings, Athenian Dialogues 
and any other possible training events.  The Institute & Academy item includes expenses 
incurred from the annual Institute and Academy trainings as stated in the contract with 
ASU.

IIMC & REGIONAL CONFERENCES – This budget item includes costs associated with 
attendance at IIMC conferences.  The AMCA will reimburse registration and travel costs 
for the IIMC Executive Director, the Regional Representative, the AMCA President and 
AMCA Education Chairman to attend the IIMC Annual Conference.

SCHOLARSHIPS – Annually scholarships are awarded to successful applicants to offset 
the cost of the registration fee for training opportunities.



AMCA ANNUAL CONFERENCE / ELECTIONS TRAINING  -  JULY 26-28, 2022
FOUNTAIN HILLS COMMUNITY CENTER, FOUNTAIN HILLS ARIZONA

Registration Fees:
Member Registration for two and 1/2 Days - Both Annual Conference & Elections Training (67 
@180.00) (Includes 6 No-Shows)

67 $180.00 $12,060.00

Non-Member Registration for two and 1/2 Days - Both Annual Conference & Elections Training 
(1 @ 210.00)

1 $210.00 $210.00

One and 1/2 day Member Registration - Elections Training (23 @ 120.00) 23 $120.00 $2,760.00
One and 1/2 day Non-Member Registration - Elections Training (6 @ 135.00 ) 6 $135.00 $810.00
One-day Member Registration - Annual Conference (6 @ 105.00 ) 6 $105.00 $630.00
One-day Non-Member Registration - Annual Conference (1 @ 115.00) 1 $115.00 $115.00
Cancellation: 1 (No Refund) 1 $0.00 $0.00
Cancellation: 2 (Full Refund) 2 $180.00 $360.00
Cancellations: 3 (Partial Refund) 3 $20.00 $60.00
Comped registrations 4 @ $0.00 (Board members: McCraken, Reece, & Riza) 4 $0.00 $0.00

Total Revenue $17,005.00

Badges (plastic & insert)  Badges 82 @ .50 ea. 82 $0.50 $41.00
Badges (title, plastic & insert)  Badges 34 @ .65 ea. 34 $0.65 $22.10
Color Copies 673 @ .37 673 $0.37 $249.01
B/W Copies  - 578 @ .04 578 $0.04 $23.12
Sponsor Punch Cards 100 @ .70 ea. 100 $0.70 $70.00
Fountain Hills Community Center $1,781.82
Speaker:  Jody Urquhart Fee and Travel Expenses $5,800.04
Speaker:  Maureen Mulvaney $5000 $5,000.00
Gift Cards - non-paid speakers 9 @ $25 ea 9 $25.00 $225.00
Food from Phil's Filling Station $14,137.50
Grapeables Wine Bar & Lounge - Reception $1,676.70
Tote Bags $1,158.52
Cvent Registrations 114 $3.04 $346.56
Miscellaneous Staff Expenses $27.83

Total Expenses $30,559.20
Excess Revenue Over Expenditures -$13,554.20

ATHENIAN DIALOGUE - JULY 25, 2022
FOUNTAIN HILLS COMMUNITY CENTER, FOUNTAIN HILLS ARIZONA

Registration Fees:
Member Early Bird (befor June 24, 2022) 16 @ 85.00 Member Registrations 16 $85.00 $1,360.00
Member (after June 24,2022) 2 @ $95 2 $95.00 $190.00
Non-Member  1 @$100 1 $100.00 $100.00

Total Revenue $1,650.00

Name Badges crack and peel  @ .65 per sheet 3 $0.65 $1.95
Cvent Registrations 19 $3.04 $57.76

Total Expenses $59.71
Excess Revenue Over Expenditures $1,590.29

I  N  C  O  M  E

E X P E N D I T U R E S

I  N  C  O  M  E

E X P E N D I T U R E S



1

Jennifer Pena

From: Tom Savage <tsavage@azleague.org>
Sent: Friday, October 13, 2023 10:00 AM
To: Clerks & Deputy Clerks
Cc: Intergovs; Nancy Davidson
Subject: [External] Ballot Recount Issue - Matrix of Possible Solutions
Attachments: DRAFT Solutions Matrix_10-5-23.pdf

The Arizona AssociaƟon of CounƟes reached out to the League to bring to our aƩenƟon a ballot recount issue in the 
coming elecƟon that will require legislaƟve acƟon to fix, potenƟally in a special session this fall.  
 
Due to changes in the law regarding ballot recounts and recent trends of very close races in AZ, there are two dates in 
the primary and general elecƟon that could be missed should key races trigger an automaƟc recount. The counƟes 
believe we could risk missing the UOCAVA ballot mailing deadline and the Dec 11 deadline to cerƟfy presidenƟal electors 
if ballot recounts are required.  
 
Both AACo and CSA have been meeƟng with the SOS, governor’s office, and legislaƟve leadership, who all agree this is 
an issue that needs to be addressed. AƩached is a PDF AACo asked us to circulate with our membership, which includes 
a list of suggested soluƟons to address these Ɵmeframe issues, including moving the primary elecƟon back by one week. 
 
AACo would like to create awareness of this issue and are requesƟng any feedback regarding the suggesƟons outlined 
in the document, and potenƟal imapcts to ciƟes. Please respond with any comments as soon as possible.  
 
Tom Savage 
League of Arizona Cities and Towns 
1820 W. Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
Office: (602) 258-5786 
Cell: (916) 806-0205 
tsavage@azleague.org 
________________________________ 
 

 



 

Updated October 5, 2023                                                                                                                                                       1 

PROBLEM STATEMENT:  Election officials from across Arizona have identified a significant risk of missing statutory deadlines 
in the administration of the 2024 Primary and General Elections if an auto-recount is triggered.  This is a calendar problem, 
not a county personnel or resource problem, although some proposed solutions may require additional SOS resources.  In 
order to meet the federal UOCAVA mailing deadline (which is September 21 in 2024), the required 5-day ballot proofing 
period for candidates, parties and jurisdictions and the federal electoral certification deadline (which is December 11 in 
2024), we believe the following possible solutions should be considered by the Arizona Legislature.  We recognize that 
there may be other solutions that are not included in this document and welcome feedback/other ideas.   

 

TOTAL DAYS NEEDED FOR AUGUST PRIMARY: 19 CALENDAR DAYS 

Option 1 
Estimated Days Gained 

Reduce the required 5-day ballot proofing period for candidates, jurisdictions, and 
political parties to a 2-calendar day ballot proofing period [ARS 16-461(B)] 

- Current statute allows candidates, jurisdictions and political parties 5 days for 
ballot proofing 

3 – 4 Calendar Days 

Set the signature cure period for March PPE, August Primary, and General Election [ARS 
16-550(A)] to 5 calendar days, all other elections 3 calendar days.  Would require county 
and city offices to be open on Saturday (4thcalender day) and Sunday (5th calendar day) 
after these elections  

- Current statute allows for 5 business days to cure signatures for elections that 
include a federal office, and 3 business days for any other election 

*2 Calendar Days 

(Not included in total 
below) 

Mirror the auto-recount hand count audit percentages to the hand count audit 
percentages of the original hand count audit [ARS 16-602(B1)] 

Clarify the auto-recount hand count audit may run concurrently with the auto-recount 
tabulation 

3 – 5 Calendar Days 

Require counties to Canvass by the 2nd Monday after the Primary Election Day [ARS 16-
645(B)] 

Require SOS to Canvass on the 2nd Thursday after the Primary Election Day instead of 3rd 
Monday [ARS 16-645(B)];   

Allow counties to securely transmit official Canvass documents to the SOS electronically 

- Current statute permits secure electronic transmission of county election results 
but does not allow for official Canvass documents to be transmitted electronically 
[ARS 16-622(B)] 

4 Calendar Days 

(*includes the 2 
calendar days gained by 
changing the signature 

cure period) 

Require auto-recount L&As to be completed by SOS within 2-calendar days after the court 
orders the auto-recount [ARS 16-664] 

- Would require the SOS increase deployment of staff and resources for the L&A 

2 Calendar Days  

Move August Primary Election Up 1 week earlier in the calendar year 

- Would need to move up other statutory deadlines (candidate filing, jurisdictional 
election dates, etc.) and grandfather in candidate signatures collected to date  

7 Calendar Days 

Total Days Gained 19 – 22 Days 

  



 

Updated October 5, 2023                                                                                                                                                       2 

TOTAL DAYS NEEDED FOR AUGUST PRIMARY: 19 CALENDAR DAYS 

Option 2 
Estimated Days Gained 

Reduce the required 5-day ballot proofing period for candidates, jurisdictions, and 
political parties to a 2-calendar day ballot proofing period [ARS 16-461(B)] 

- Current statute allows candidates, jurisdictions and political parties 5 days for 
ballot proofing 

3 – 4 Calendar Days 

Set the signature cure period for March PPE, August Primary, and General Election [ARS 
16-550(A)] to 5 calendar days, all other elections 3 calendar days.  Would require county 
and city offices to be open on Saturday (4thcalender day) and Sunday (5th calendar day) 
after these elections  

- Current statute allows for 5 business days to cure signatures for elections that 
include a federal office, and 3 business days for any other election 

*2 Calendar Days 

(Not included in total 
below) 

Require counties to Canvass by the 2nd Monday after the Primary Election Day [ARS 16-
645(B)] 

Require SOS to Canvass on the 2nd Thursday after the Primary Election Day instead of 3rd 
Monday [ARS 16-645(B)];   

Allow counties to securely transmit official Canvass documents to the SOS electronically 

- Current statute permits secure electronic transmission of county election results 
but does not allow for official Canvass documents to be transmitted electronically 
[ARS 16-622(B)] 

4 Calendar Days 

Move August Primary Election Up 2 weeks earlier in the calendar year 

- Would need to move up other statutory deadlines (candidate filing, jurisdictional 
election dates, etc.) and grandfather in candidate signatures collected to date  

14 Calendar Days 

Total Days Gained 21 – 22 Days 

 

  



 

Updated October 5, 2023                                                                                                                                                       3 

TOTAL DAYS NEEDED FOR NOVEMBER GENERAL: 17 CALENDAR DAYS Estimated Days Gained 

Set the signature cure period for March PPE, August Primary, and General Election [ARS 
16-550(A)] to 5 calendar days, all other elections 3 calendar days.  Would require county 
and city offices to be open on Saturday (4thcalender day) and Sunday (5th calendar day) 
after these elections  

- Current statute allows for 5 business days to cure signatures for elections that 
include a federal office, and 3 business days for any other election 

*2 Calendar Days 

(Not included in total 
below) 

Require counties to Canvass by the 3rd Thursday after the General Election [ARS 16-642] 

Require SOS to canvass three calendar days after the 3rd Thursday after the General 
Election [ARS 16-648] 

- This will require the Governor, AG and SOS to canvass on a Sunday.  The court will 
also need to be available on that Sunday to order the auto-recount  

Allow counties to transmit official canvass documents to the SOS electronically 

- Current statute requires electronic transmission of county election results but 
does not allow for official canvass documents to be delivered electronically [ARS 
16-622] 

8 Calendar Days 

(*includes the 2 

calendar days gained by 

changing the signature 

cure period) 

Mirror the auto-recount hand count audit percentages to the hand count audit 
percentages of the original hand count audit [ARS 16-602(B1)] 

Clarify the auto-recount hand count audit may run concurrently with the auto-recount 
tabulation 

4 – 5 Calendar Days 

Require auto-recount L&As to be completed by SOS within 2-calendar days after the court 
orders the auto-recount [ARS 16-664] 

- Would require the SOS increase deployment of staff and resources for the L&A  

2 Calendar Days  

Shorten the election contest filing period to 3 calendar days after the SOS Canvass [ARS 
16-673] 

- Current statute is within 5 days of the SOS Canvass 

2 Calendar Days 

Total Days Gained 16 – 17 Days 

  



 

Updated October 5, 2023                                                                                                                                                       4 

Other Potential Solution(s) Estimated Days Gained 

Positively 
Impacts 

9/21/24 federal 
UOCAVA 
Mailing 

Deadline 

Positively 
Impacts 

12/10/24 
federal Safe 

Harbor 
Deadline 

Set the signature cure period for all elections to 3 
calendar days [ARS 16-550(A)]   

- Current statute allows for 5 business days to 
cure signatures for elections that include a 
federal office, and 3 business days for any 
other election.     

4 – 5 Calendar Days Y Y 

Allow counties to conduct the L&A when any auto-
recount is triggered [ARS 16-664] 

- Current statute requires the SOS to conduct 
the L&A when an auto-recount is triggered for 
a ballot that has a state-wide or federal or 
legislative contest 

2 – 5 Calendar Days Y Y 

Eliminate the requirement for a hand count audit of 
auto-recount results if an auto-recount has been 
triggered 

- Original tabulated results have already been 
subject to a hand count audit 

5 Calendar Days Y Y 

 

 

 

 


	2023-10-25 Agenda packet B
	AMCA Board Minutes 09-27-23 DRAFT
	FY24_Budget_ADOPTED
	FY24 Budget +

	2022 Conference Elections Expense sheet
	Ballot Recount Issue
	Ballot Recount Issue Solutions Matrix

